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In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

PETER EDWARD DROUBAY, M.D. 
3428 Morro Bay Ave. 
Davis, CA 95616 

Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G 27705 

Respondent. 

Case No. 800-2014-003735 

OAH No. 2015080154 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

18 IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

19 entitled proceedings that the following matters are true: 

20 PARTIES 

21 1. Kimberly Kirchmeyer ("Complainant") is the Executive Director of the Medical 

22 Board of California. She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in 

23 this matter by Kamala D. Harris, Attorney General ofthe State of California, by Mara Faust, 

24 Deputy Attorney General. 

25 2. Respondent Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. ("Respondent") is represented in this 

26 proceeding by attorney Robert B. Zaro, Esq., whose address is: 1315 I Street, Suite 200 

27 Sacramento, CA 95814. 
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3. On or about August 6, 1974, the Medical Board of California issued Physician's and 

2 Surgeon's Certificate No. G 27705 to Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. (Respondent). The 

3 Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the 

4 charges brought in Accusation No. 800-2014-003735 and will expire on February 28,2017, 

5 unless renewed. 
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JURISDICTION 

4. Accusation No. 800-2014-003735 was filed before the Medical Board of California 

(Board) , Department of Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against Respondent. The 

Accusation and all other statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on 

June 19,2015. Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation. 

5. A copy of Accusation No. 800-2014-003735 is attached as exhibit A and incorporated 

herein by reference. 

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

6. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the 

charges and allegations in Accusation No. 800-2014-003735. Respondent has also carefully read, 

fully discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and 

Disciplinary Order. 

7. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right to a 

hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel at 

his own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him; the right to 

present evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas to compel 

the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration and 

court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California 

Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

8. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and 

26 every right set forth above. 

27 I I I 

28 I I I 
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CULPABILITY 

2 9. Respondent understands and agrees that the charges and allegations in Accusation 

3 No. 800-2014-003735, if proven at a hearing, constitute cause for imposing discipline upon his 

4 Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate. 

5 10. For the purpose of resolving the Accusation without the expense and uncertainty of 

6 further proceedings, Respondent agrees that, at a hearing, Complainant could establish a factual 

7 basis for the charges in the Accusation, and that Respondent hereby gives up his right to contest 

8 those charges. 

9 11. Respondent agrees that his Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate is subject to 

10 discipline and he agrees to be bound by the Board's imposition of discipline as set forth in the 

11 Disciplinary Order below. 

12 CIRCUMSTANCES IN MITIGATION 

13 12. Respondent Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. has never been the subject of any 

14 disciplinary action. He is admitting responsibility at an early stage in the proceedings. 

15 CONTINGENCY 

16 13. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Medical Board of California. 

17 Respondent understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Medical 

18 Board of California may communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and 

19 settlement, without notice to or participation by Respondent or his counsel. By signing the 

20 stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seek 

21 to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. Ifthe Board fails 

22 to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary 

23 Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal 

24 action between the parties, and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having 

25 considered this matter. 

26 14. The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile 

27 copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including Portable Document Format 

28 (PDF) and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals. 
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15. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that 

2 the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following 

3 Disciplinary Order: 

4 DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

5 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G 27705 issued 

6 to Respondent Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. (Respondent) is publically reprimanded pursuant to 

7 Business and Professions Code section 2227, as more specifically set forth below. 

8 1. PUBLIC REPRIMAND. Respondent is publically reprimanded as follows: 

9 On June I9, 20I5, an Accusation was filed against you alleging gross negligence under 

I 0 Business and Professions Code (Code) section 2334, subdivision (b) as follows: In the care of 

II patient L.L., during her stay at Courtyard SNF, you failed to conduct a full and proper history and 

I2 physical, you also failed to document the risks and benefits of using multiple narcotic and 

13 sedative medications at discharge, and you failed to consider the side effects of excessive 

14 prescribing and/or poly-pharmacy of multiple narcotics, muscle relaxants, and mood altering 

I5 medications, and sedative medications, both before and after the discharge of patient L.L. from 

I6 Courtyard SNF. All ofthese failures collectively and separately constitute an extreme departure 

I7 from the standard of care. This public reprimand pursuant to Code section 2227 is issued to you 

18 with the expectation that such conduct will not be repeated. 

I9 2. PRESCRIBING PRACTICES COURSE. Within 60 calendar days ofthe effective 

20 date of this Decision, Respondent shall enroll in a course in prescribing practices equivalent to the 

2I Prescribing Practices Course at the Physician Assessment and Clinical Education Program, 

22 University of California, San Diego School ofMedicine (Program), approved in advance by the 

23 Board or its designee. Respondent shall provide the program with any information and documents 

24 that the Program may deem pertinent. Respondent shall participate in and successfully complete 

25 the classroom component of the course not later than six (6) months after Respondent's initial 

26 enrollment. Respondent shall successfully complete any other component of the course within 

27 one (1) year of enrollment. The prescribing practices course shall be at Respondent's expense 

28 I I I 
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and shall be in addition to the Continuing Medical Education (CME) requirements for renewal of 

2 licensure. 

3 A prescribing practices course taken after the acts that gave rise to the charges in the 

4 Accusation, but prior to the effective date of the Decision may, in the sole discretion of the Board 

5 or its designee, be accepted towards the fulfillment of this condition if the course would have 

6 been approved by the Board or its designee had the course been taken after the effective date of 

7 this Decision. 

8 Respondent shall submit a certification of successful completion to the Board or its 

9 designee not later than 15 calendar days after successfully completing the course, or not later than 

I 0 15 calendar days after the effective date of the Decision, whichever is later. 

II 3. MEDICAL RECORD KEEPING COURSE. Within 60 calendar days of the 

12 effective date of this Decision, Respondent shall enroll in a course in medical record keeping 

13 equivalent to the Medical Record Keeping Course offered by the Physician Assessment and 

14 Clinical Education Program, University of California, San Diego School ofMedicine (Program), 

15 approved in advance by the Board or its designee. Respondent shall provide the program with any 

16 information and documents that the Program may deem pertinent. Respondent shall participate in 

17 and successfully complete the classroom component of the course not later than six (6) months 

18 after Respondent's initial enrollment. Respondent shall successfully complete any other 

19 component of the course within one (I) year of enrollment. The medical record keeping course 

20 shall be at Respondent's expense and shall be in addition to the Continuing Medical Education 

21 (CME) requirements for renewal of licensure. 

22 A medical record keeping course taken after the acts that gave rise to the charges in the 

23 Accusation, but prior to the effective date of the Decision may, in the sole discretion of the Board 

24 or its designee, be accepted towards the fulfillment of this condition if the course would have 

25 been approved by the Board or its designee had the course been taken after the effective date of 

26 this Decision. 

27 I I I 
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4. VIOLATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. Failure to comply with any terms or 

2 conditions of this agreement shall constitute unprofessional conduct. If respondent violates this 

3 agreement in any respect, the Board may reinstate the Accusation and/or file an amended 

4 accusation. 

5 Respondent shall submit a certification of successful completion to the Board or its 

6 designee not later than 15 calendar days after successfully completing the course, or not later than 

7 15 calendar days after the effective date of the Decision, whichever is later. 

8 ACCEPTANCE 

9 I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully 

I 0 discussed it with my attorney, Robert B. Zaro, Esq. I understand the stipulation and the effect it 

II will have on my Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate. I enter into this Stipulated Settlement and 

12 Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the 

13 Decision and Order ofthe Medical Board of California. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

DATED: /i__ 0 v. I"' :l-0 I s= 
I &~~&0. 

TED WARD DROUBA Y, M.D. 
Respondent 

18 I have read and fully discussed with Respondent Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. the terms 

I9 and conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary 

20 Order. I approve its form and content. 

21 

22 
DATED: 

23 

24 

25 I I I 

26 I I I 

27 I I I 

28 I I I 

Robert B. Zaro, Esq. 
Attorney for Respondent 
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ENDORSEMENT 

2 The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully 

3 submitted for consideration by the Medical Board of California. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

KAMALA D. HARRJS 
Attorney General of California 
JOSE R. GUERRERO 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

MARA FAUST 
Deputy Attorney General 
Attorneys for Complainant 
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In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. 
3428 Morro Bay Avenue 
Davis, CA 95616 

14 Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G 27705, 

15 Respondent. 

16 

17 Complainant alleges: 

18 PARTIES 

Case No. 800-2014-003735 

ACCUSATION 

19 1. Kimberly Kirchmeyer (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official 

20 capacity as the Executive Director of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer 

21 Affairs (Board). 

22 2. On or about August 6, 1974, the Medical Board issued Physician's and Surgeon's 

23 Certificate Number G 27705 to Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. (Respondent). The Physician's and 

24 Surgeon's Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought 

25 herein and will expire on February 28, 2017, unless renewed. 

26 I I I 
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JURISDICTION 

2 3. This Accusation is brought before the Board, under the authority of the following 

3 laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated. 

4 4. Section 2227 of the Code provides that a licensee who is found guilty under the 

5 Medical Practice Act may have his or her license revoked, suspended for a period not to exceed 

6 one year, placed on probation and required to pay the costs of probation monitoring, or such other 

7 action taken in relation to discipline as the Division 1 deems proper. 

8 5. Section 2234 of the Code, states: 

9 "The board shall take action against any licensee who is charged with unprofessional 

10 conduct. In addition to other provisions of this article, unprofessional conduct includes, but is not 

11 limited to, the following: 

12 "(a) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or abetting the 

13 violation of, or conspiring to violate any provision of this chapter. 

14 "(b) Gross negligence. 

15 "(c) Repeated negligent acts. To be repeated, there must be two or more negligent acts or 

1 6 omissions. An initial negligent act or omission followed by a separate and distinct departure 

17 from the applicable standard of care shall constitute repeated negligent acts. 

18 "(1) An initial negligent diagnosis followed by an act or omission medically appropriate 

19 for that negligent diagnosis of the patient shall constitute a single negligent act. 

20 "(2) When the standard of care requires a change in the diagnosis, act, or omission that 

21 constitutes the negligent act described in paragraph (1 ), including, but not limited to, a 

22 reevaluation of the diagnosis or a change in treatment, and the licensee's conduct departs from the 

23 applicable standard of care, each departure constitutes a separate and distinct breach of the 

24 standard of care. 

25 

26 

27 

28 

1 California Business and Professions Code section 2002, as amended and effective January 1, 
2008, provides that, unless otherwise expressly provided, the term "Board" as used in the State 
Medical Practice Act (Bus. & Prof. Code § 2000, et seq.) means the "Medical Board of 
California," and references to the "Division of Medical Quality" and "Division of Licensing" in 
the Act or any other provision of law shall be deemed to refer to the Board. 

2 
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"(d) Incompetence." 

" " 

6. Section 2242 of the Code states: 

"(a) Prescribing, dispensing, or fumishing dangerous dmgs as defined in Section 4022 

without an appropriate prior examination and a medical indication, constitutes unprofessional 

conduct. 

"(b) No licensee shall be found to have committed unprofessional conduct within the 

meaning of this section if, at the time the drug~ were prescribed, dispensed, or furnished, any of 

the following applies: 

"(1) The licensee was a designated physician and surgeon or podiatrist serving in the 

absence of the patient's physician and surgeon or podiatrist, as the case may be, and if the drugs 

were prescribed, dispensed, or furnished only as necessary to maintain the patient until the return 

of his or her practitioner, but in any case no longer than 72 hours." 

7. Section 2266 of the Code states: 11The failure of a physician and surgeon to maintain 

adequate and accurate records relating to the provision of services to their patients constitutes 

unprofessional conduct." 

DRUGS 

8. Norco, a brand name for hydrocodone bitartrate and acetaminophen, is a Schedule III 

controlled substance as designated in Health and Safety Code section 11056, subdivision (e)(4), 

and a Schedule III controlled substance as defined by Section 1308.13, subdivision (e), of Title 

21 ofthe Code of Federal Regulations, and is a dangerous drug as defined in section 4022 ofthe 

Code. The side effects include anxiety, dizziness, drowsiness and to become lightheaded. 

9. Fentanyl, an opioid analgesic, is the chemical name for a Schedule II controlled 

substance as designated in Health and Safety Code section 11055, subdivision (c)(8), and is a 

Schedule Il controlled substance as defined in Section 1308.12 ofTitle 21 ofthe Code ofFederal 

Regulations, and is a dangerous drug as defined in section4022 of the Code. Fentanyl's primary 

effects are anesthesia and sedation. Fentanyl is a strong opioid medication and is indicated only 

Ill 
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for treatment of chronic pain that cannot be managed by lesser means and requires continuous 

2 opioid administration. Side effects include sedation, dizziness and fainting/falls. 

3 10. OxyContin, a trade name for the opiate, oxycodone hydrochloride, is a Schedule II 

4 controlled substance as designated in Health and Safety Code section 11055, subdivision 

5 (b)(l)(M), and a Schedule II controlled substance as defined by Section 1308.12, subdivision 

6 (b )(1 ), of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and is a dangerous drug as defined in 

7 section 4022 of the Code. It is a pure agonist opioid whose principal therapeutic action is 

8 analgesia. Other therapeutic effects of oxycodone include reducing anxiety, euphoria, and 

9 feelings of relaxation. Respiratory depression is a chief hazard from all opioid agonist 

10 preparations. Some side effects include euphoria, sleepiness, and dizziness. 

11 11. Dilaudid, a trade name for the opiate, hydromorphone hydrocoloride, is a Schedule II 

12 controlled substance as designated in Health and Safety Code section 11055, subdivision (d) and 

13 a Schedule II controlled substance as defined by Section 1308.12, subdivision (d), of Title 21 of 

14 the Code of Federal Regulations, and is a dangerous drug as defined in section 4022 of the Code. 

15 Side effects include drowsiness, mental clouding, respiratory depression, vomiting, and sedation 

16 which can lead to falls. 

17 12. Vicodin, a trade name for a combination drug containing hydrocodone bitartrate and 

18 acetaminophen, is a Schedule Ill controlled substance as designated in Health and Safety Code 

19 section 11056, subdivision (e)(3), and a Schedule III controlled substance as defined by section 

20 1308.13, subdivision (e), of Title 21 of the Federal Regulations, and is a dangerous drug as 

21 defined in section 4022 of the Code. Alcohol and other Central Nervous System (CNS) 

22 depressants may produce an addictive CNS depression, when taken with this combination 

23 product, and should be avoided. Patients taking other narcotic analgesics, antihistamines, 

24 anti psychotics, antianxiety agents, or other CNS depressants concomitantly with Vicodin may 

25 exhibit an additive CNS depression. Repeated administration of Vicodin over the course of 

26 several weeks may result in psychological and physical dependence. 

27 Ill 

28 Ill 
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13. Klonopin, a trade name for clonazepam, an anticonvulsant of the benzodiazepine 

2 class of drugs, is a Schedule .IV controlled substance as designated in Health and Safety Code 

3 section 11057, subdivision (d)(7) and a Schedule IV controlled substance as defined by section 

4 1308.14 of Title 16 ofthe Code of Federal Regulations, and is a dangerous drug as defined in 

5 section 4022 of the Code. It can increase the risk of cognitive impairment, delirium, and ataxia 

6 (clumsiness) which can lead to falls and fractures. 

7 14. Flexcril, a brand name for cyclobenzaprine, which is a muscle-relaxant and sedative 

8 and a dangerous drug as defined in section 4022 of the Code. 

9 15. Mcthocarbamol, is a muscle relaxer, and a dangerous drug as defined in section 

1 0 4022 of the Code. It can cause drowsiness and dizziness. 

11 16. Ambien, a brand name for zolpidem tartrate, which treats insomnia, is a Schedule IV 

12 Controlled Substance as designated in Heath and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(32), 

13 and a dangerous drug as defined in section 4022 of the Code. 

14 17. Melatonin, is the chemical name for a hormone that assists in sleep and is a 

15 dangerous drug as defined in section 4022 of the Code. 

16 18. Buspar, a trade name for buspirone hydrochloride, is an anxiolytic psychotropic 

17 drug, used to treat general anxiety disorder and a dangerous drug as defined in section 4022 of the 

18 Code. 

19 19. Zoloft, a trade name for sertraline, and anti-depressant and is a dangerous drug as 

20 defined in section 4022 of the Code. 

21 FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCII>LJNE 
(Gross Negligence in the lack of proper history & physical exam for patient L.L.) 

22 

23 20. Respondent Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. is subject to disciplinary action under 

24 se<.:tion 2234, subdivision (b) of the Code in that Respondent failed to do a proper history 'and 

25 physical of patient L.L. upon her admission to Courtyard Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF). The 

26 circumstances are as follows: 

27 I I I 

28 I I I 
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21. On or about March 8, 2014, patient L.L., a 54-year old woman, fell at her niece's 

2 house while in the bathroom, and presented at U.C. Davis Emergency Department. Treating 

3 physician, Dr. J. N., who cared for patient L.L., filed a complaint with the Medical Board, on 

4 March 13, 2014, alleging that Respondent was inappropriately or excessively prescribing pain 

5 medication to patient L.L. 

6 22. On or about December 10,2013, patient L.L., had an earlier fall, while walking to her 

7 bathroom using her walker. She was diagnosed with a left humerus comminuted fracture (left 

8 shoulder). As her fracture was not displaced her physicians did not recommend surgical 

9 intervention. Instead, on December 14, 2013, patient L.L. was transferred to Courtyard SNF for 

10 treatment and rehabilitation of her left shoulder. Her care was supervised at this facility by 

11 Respondent, who was also the facility director, until March 3, 2014 when she was discharged. 

12 23. On December 16,2013, the patient was seen by Respondent as part ofthe formal 

13 admission to Comiyard SNF for pain management and rehabilitation of her shoulder fracture. In 

14 the two prior days, patient L.L. had been seen by a physician assistant (M.K.) and another 

15 physician (Dr. F.) Patient L.L.'s admission medications included the following: Zoloft 150 mg., 

16 once a day; Buspar 10 mg., BID (twice a day) for depression and anxiety; Melatonin 3 mg., PO 

17 (by mouth) QHS (at bedtime) for insomnia; Klonopin 0.5 mg, twice daily for anxiety; Flexeril 

18 10 mg q (daily) 8 hr prn (when necessary), for anxiety; and Methocarbamol500 mg, 1 tab PO (by 

19 mouth) TID (three times daily), for muscle spasms. For pain, patient L.L. was taking Norco 

20 10/325 mg., 1-2 tab q (daily) 4 hr prn (when necessary) and Oxycodone 5 mg., 102 tab q 3 hours 

21 prn. However, at the December 16, 2013 visit Respondent discontinued the Oxycodone prn and 

22 substituted Dilaudid 8mg. po q 6 hour. There was no documentation of the Oxycodone being 

23 ineffective or the patient showing intolerance to it. Respondent failed to document why he made 

24 the change in pain medication. 

25 I I I 

26 I I I 

27 I I I 

28 I II 
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24. On December 20, 2013, Respondent saw patient L.L. crying in pain. The patient had 

2 pain with any slight movement despite using 8 mg. ofDilaudid prn and Norco prn. Respondent 

3 prescribed the additional pain medication of Oxycontin 40 mg. po q 12 hours, left the Dilaudid 8 

4 mg., but instructed daily every 3 hours for breakthrough pain rather than every 6 hours, and left 

5 the Norco continued as before. 

6 25. On December 28, 2013, patient L.L. was sick, and was recorded as wheezing on 

7 examination by Respondent and the patient continued to have much pain in the left arm. 

8 Respondent prescribed Augmentin 876 mg. bid for Acute Bronchitis. Respondent documented no 

9 review of pain medication effectiveness since the changes from December 20, 2013, nor were any 

10 changes made to the patient's pain medication. 

11 .26. On January 3, 2014, Respondent again saw patient L.L. who was complaining of 

12 increased right shoulder pain. T n addition, the patient was asking for a steroid shot, sleep 

13 medication and/or a pain patch. The medical records also indicate that patient L.L. was anxious 

14 and was asking to increase the Klonopin to twice daily. Respondent increased the Klonopin to 

15 0.5 mg. po (mouth) q (daily)8 hours. He also started the patient on Duragesic/Fentanyl25 

16 mcg./hour Patch q 3 days for pain control and Am bien 10 mg. q hs for insomnia. The patient was 

17 previously on Melatonin for insomnia. 

18 27. On January 10,2014, Respondent again saw patient L.L. and he recorded that the 

19 pain on the patient's left fracture side was better with the Fentanyl patch. However, the patient 

20 had right shoulder/lateral deltoid pain and was requesting a steroid shot which was given. The . 

21 plan was to continue the Fentanyl patch and prn Norco 10/325. Respondent did not comment on -

22 any of the other prescribed pain medications including the Oxycontin and Dilaudid. 

23 28. On February 3, 2014, Respondent saw patient L.L. in bed resting. The patient 

24 complained that she did not sleep well due to pain in left shoulder and hip. Her left arm was in a 

25 sling and was tender. Respondent ordered the medications continued as before. This was 

26 Respondent's last recorded visit with the patient and she was discharged a month later, on March 

27 3, 2014, to her niece's home. 

28 I I I 
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29. On March 8, 2014, at the time ofthe patient's second fall, she was on the following 

2 pain medications: Two short acting pain medications consisting ofDilaudid 8mg q (daily) 8 hr 

3 prn and Norco 10/325 1-2 tabs q (daily) 6 hours prn, and two long acting pain medications 

4 consisting of Fentanyl 25 meg. q (daily) 3 days and Oxycontin 40 mg. bid (twice daily). In 

5 addition, patient L.L. was also taking the following medications, many with sedating affects: 

6 Flexeril and Methocarbamol to relax the muscles, Klonopin for anxiety, and Melatonin and 

7 Ambien for insomnia. 

8 30. The U.C. Davis Emergency Department nurse, noted upon admission on March 8, 

9 2014, that patient L.L. had her Fentanyl patch on the left side of her chest. The patient was x-

1 0 rayed and no new fractures were noted. The patient was admitted to the Family Practice Group 

11 for medication management and then discharged to the Courtyard SNF. At discharge from U.C. 

12 Davis, the patient was still taking Oxycontin, Norco and Methocarbamol, but the prescriptions for 

13 Dilaudid, Fentanyl and Flexeril were discontinued. 

14 31. Respondent failed to document the characteristics and reason for continued pain at 

15 each visit. Respondent failed to write a full SOAP recommendation on the admitting visit and 

16 subsequent visits. Respondent failed to obtain the prior pain treatment plan at his admission 

17 evaluation. This information would have told him that the severe pain was due to fall and 

18 fracture. Respondent reported that the patient was crying and in pain which required medication 

19 changes on several visits, yet Respondent failed to document the exacerbating or relieving 

20 systems tied to the pain medication given, nor was patient monitored and/or warned about any 

21 side-effects. Respondent failed to evaluate the shoulder x-ray to see if the cause of the patient's 

22 pain was displacement or to see if any other reason existed for continued pain through a three 

23 month period when the fracture should have healed. Respondent failed to explore whether the 

24 patient's crying and pain had a psychological component, including possible drug seeking 

25 behavior, grief or worsening depression. All of these failures collectively and separately 

26 constitute an extreme departure from the standard of care in violation of section 2234, subdivision 

27 (b) of the Code. 

28 I I I 
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Gross Negligence in the treatment plan for patient L.L.) 

2 32. Complainant hereby incorporates paragraphs 20 through 31 of the instant Accusation 

3 as though fully set forth herein. 

4 33. Respondent Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. is subject to disciplinary action under 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

section 2234, subdivision (b) of the Code in that Respondent failed to do follow through on a 

treatment plan of patient L.L. during her stay at Courtyard SNF and after her discharge. 

Respondent failed to appropriately manage patient L.L. 's pain by referring the patient out to the 

following consultants: a pain management clinic, a psychologist/psychiatrist for the psychological 

etiology of uncontrolled pain, for cognitive or behavioral therapy, anc!Jor for complementary and 

alternative therapies. Respondent also failed to document the risks and benefits of using multiple 

narcotic and sedative medications at discharge and wrote no discharge summary nor a discharge 

medication summary. All of these failures collectively and separately constitute an extreme 

departure from the standard of care in violation of section 2234, subdivision (b) of the Code. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Gross Negligence in poly-pharmacy/excessive prescribing of sedating drugs to patient 

L.L.) 

16 34. Complainant hereby incorporates paragraphs 20 through 31 of the instant Accusation 

17 as though fully set forth herein. 

18 35. Respondent Peter Edward Droubay, M.D. is subject to disciplinary action under 

19 section 2234, subdivision (b) of the Code in that Respondent failed to consider the side effects of 

20 excessive prescribing and/or poly-pharmacy of multiple narcotics, muscle relaxants and mood 

21 altedng medications and sedative medications both before and after the discharge of patient L.L. 

22 from Courtyard SNf. Respondent failed to discontinue certain categories of medications once 

23 new medications in the same category were introduced, such as limiting the patient to one short 

24 acting pain medication and one long acting medication, along with one muscle relaxer. All of 

25 these failures collectively and separately constitute an extreme departure from the standard of 

26 care in violation of section 2234, subdivision (b) ofthe Code. 

27 I I I 

28 I I I 

9 

(PETER EDWARD DROUBA Y, M.D.) ACCUSATION NO. 800-2014-003735 



PRAYER 

2 WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

3 and that following the hearing, the Medical Board of California issue a decision: 

4 1. Revoking or suspending Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate Number G 27705, 

5 issued to Peter Edward Droubay, M.D.; 

6 2. Revoking, suspending or denying approval of Peter Edward Droubay, M.D.'s 

7 authority to supervise physician assistants, pursuant to section 3527 of the Code; 

8 3. Ordering Peter Edward Droubay, M.D., ifplaeed on probation, to pay the Board the 

9 costs of probation monitoring; and 

10 

11 

12 

4. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

13 DATED: June 19, 2015 

14 

15 

16 

17 
SA20 15300290 

18 32077420.doc 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Executive irector 
Medical Board of California 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 
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